
Policies, Procedures and Standards Committee 
 
 
Meeting Date:  February 14, 2023 
Meeting Time:  3:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Meeting Link: Click here to join the meeting 
Meeting ID: 255 961 398 574 
Passcode: Va85iy 
Or call in (audio only): +1 949-543-0845 
Phone Conference ID: 355 139 686# 
 
Committee Chair: Becks Heyhoe 
Committee Members: Judson Brown, Dawn Price, Christina Weckerly-Ramirez 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
Welcome and Introductions – Becks Heyhoe, Chair  

Public Comments – Members of the public may address the Policies, Procedures and Standards (PPS) 
Committee on items listed within this agenda or matters not appearing on the agenda so long as the 
subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the PPS Committee. Members of the public may address the 
PPS Committee with public comments on agenda items after the PPS Committee member discussion. 
Comments will be limited to three minutes. If there are more than five public speakers, this time will be 
reduced to two minutes. In order to address the PPS Committee, members of the public are to enter their 
name and agenda item number in the chat box to be placed in a queue. PPS Committee staff will call your 
name in the order listed in the chat box. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approve the PPS Committee Meeting Minutes from November 8, 2022. 

BUSINESS CALENDAR 

1. Orange County HMIS Data Quality Plan – Erin DeRycke, Vice President of Data Analytics, 211OC 

a. Overview of review and development of Data Quality Plan with working group 
b. Approve the recommended Orange County HMIS Data Quality Plan 

2. Continuum of Care (CoC) Nominating Committee Recommendations – Becks Heyhoe, Chair and CoC 
Nominating Committee 

a. Provide recommendations for future CoC Board nomination and selection processes 
b. Approve creation of an Ad Hoc to review CoC Board nomination and selection process 

recommendations 

3. CoC Update – Zulima Lundy, Director of Operations, Office of Care Coordination and Felicia 
Boehringer, CoC Administrator 

a. Overview of updates within the revised PPS Committee Governance Charter 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.1

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_NjhhMjljYWYtMjEzYi00YzRkLTk4NzktNTY4MTY1NDNlYjEz%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%2522e4449a56-cd3d-40ba-ae32-25a63deaab3b%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%25229cb6e744-e766-4f1f-802f-4ab296442642%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7Cjasmin.miranda%40ocgov.com%7C48b8bba85c5a4f068f6208dab2bddb42%7Ce4449a56cd3d40baae3225a63deaab3b%7C0%7C0%7C638018825738302201%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zophTR2Ts284lRSe1myGqbFwtofnYOFHAzJeB%2FSAFSQ%3D&reserved=0


b. Racial Equity Roadmap Data Update  
c. Request for Proposals 

4. Adjournment to: Regular meeting on March 14, 2023, 3:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.2



Policies, Procedures and Standards Committee 
 
 
Meeting Date:  November 8, 2022 
Meeting Time:  3:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Meeting Link:  Click here to join the meeting 
Meeting ID: 255 961 398 574 
Passcode: Va85iy 
Or call in (audio only): +1 949-543-0845 
Phone Conference ID: 355 139 686# 
 
Committee Chair: Becks Heyhoe 
Committee Members: Matt Bates, Judson Brown, Patti Long, Dawn Price, Christina Weckerly-Ramirez 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
Welcome and Introductions – Becks Heyhoe, Committee Chair  

a. Chair Becks Heyhoe called the meeting to order at 3:32 p.m.  
b. Roll Call 

i. Present: Chair Becks Heyhoe, Matt Bates, Judson Brown, Dawn Price, Christina Weckerly-
Ramirez 

ii. Absent Excused: Patti Long  

Public Comments – Members of the public may address the Policies, Procedures and Standards (PPS) 
Committee on items listed within this agenda or matters not appearing on the agenda so long as the 
subject matter is within the jurisdiction of the PPS Committee. Members of the public may address the 
PPS Committee with public comments on agenda items after the PPS Committee member discussion. 
Comments will be limited to three minutes. If there are more than five public speakers, this time will be 
reduced to two minutes. In order to address the PPS Committee, members of the public are to enter their 
name and agenda item number in the chat box to be placed in a queue. PPS Committee staff will call your 
name in the order listed in the chat box. 

No public comments.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approve the PPS Committee Meeting Minutes from September 13, 2022. 

Dawn Price motioned to approve the item on the Consent Calendar. Chair Becks Heyhoe seconded 
the motion. Chair Becks Heyhoe, Matt Bates, Judson Brown, Dawn Price, and Christina Weckerly-
Ramirez voted yes. Motion passed unanimously.  

BUSINESS CALENDAR 

1. Continuum of Care (CoC) Racial Equity Data Dashboard – Zulima Lundy, Director of Operations, Office 
of Care Coordination and Erin DeRycke, Vice President, Data Analytics, 211OC 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.3

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_NjhhMjljYWYtMjEzYi00YzRkLTk4NzktNTY4MTY1NDNlYjEz%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%2522e4449a56-cd3d-40ba-ae32-25a63deaab3b%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%25229cb6e744-e766-4f1f-802f-4ab296442642%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7Cjasmin.miranda%40ocgov.com%7C48b8bba85c5a4f068f6208dab2bddb42%7Ce4449a56cd3d40baae3225a63deaab3b%7C0%7C0%7C638018825738302201%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zophTR2Ts284lRSe1myGqbFwtofnYOFHAzJeB%2FSAFSQ%3D&reserved=0


 
Zulima Lundy provided background on the process that lead to the creation of the CoC Racial Equity 
Data Dashboard. The Office of Care Coordination, 2-1-1 Orange County (211OC) and C4 Innovations 
have discussed how the Orange County CoC has reviewed data and the best way to promote racial 
equity in the community and in the homeless service delivery and provision.  
 
Erin DeRycke gave an overview on how the CoC Racial Equity Data Dashboard would be used and what 
data would be included in the dashboard in support of the Racial Equity Framework that the Orange 
County CoC is developing. 211OC created both an agency-level and CoC-wide racial equity dashboard. 
The agency dashboard allows agencies to see what their own data looks like in HMIS, which is 
currently available. 211OC first worked on the agency dashboard and shared with the Data and 
Performance Management Committee in July 2022 with the publication in HMIS in August 2022.  
 
Amended Recommended Action: Recommend the CoC Racial Equity Data Dashboard for review and 
approval by the Orange County CoC Board, with understanding that the document will be improved 
upon for the chart labels and descriptors to make it more user friendly.   

 
Dawn Price motioned to move the motion. Matt Bates seconded the motion. Chair Becks Heyhoe, 
Matt Bates, Judson Brown, Dawn Price, and Christina Weckerly-Ramirez voted yes. Motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
PPS Committee Member Comments: 

• Dawn Price shared that the dashboard should be revised to place descriptors for the chart 
labels and data presented in order to allow the general public to better understand the 
information.  

• Becks Heyhoe stated that the category in Coordinated Entry System, (CES) Referral can be 
updated to make the term clearer to others.  

 
Public Comments:  

• John Underwood inquired on the public viewing of the chart and asked if the information will 
be made available to the public in the near future.  
 

2. CoC Governance Charter Recommendations – Zulima Lundy, Director of Operations, Office of Care 
Coordination and CoC Nominating Committee 

Zulima Lundy provided a brief background on the CoC Nominating Committee, which was approved 
by the CoC Board on the September 28, 2022. The CoC Nominating Committee was tasked with 
ensuring that the CoC Governance Charter is compliant with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) and Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH) 
Act regulations, reviewing and recommending changes to the CoC Governance Charter and 
facilitating the CoC Board election process for the expiring seats. The CoC Nominating Committee 
reviewed the relevant sections of the CoC Governance Charter in detail and are recommending the 
proposed revisions. Chair Becks Heyhoe and David Gillanders, both members of the CoC Nominating 
Committee provided an overview of the proposed revisions and some of the reasoning behind the 
recommendations. 
 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.4



Recommended Action: Approve the recommended changes to the CoC Governance Charter as 
recommended by the CoC Nominating Committee and recommend the revised CoC Governance 
Charter for approval by the Orange County CoC Board. 
 
Matt Bates motioned to move the motion. Dawn Price seconded the motion. Chair Becks Heyhoe, 
Matt Bates, Judson Brown, Dawn Price, and Christina Weckerly-Ramirez voted yes. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
PPS Committee Member Comments:  

• Dawn Price commented on the great job Completed to improve the CoC Board Election 
Process. 

 
Public Comments: 

• David Gillanders expressed his gratitude for allowing him the opportunity to serve on the CoC 
Nominating Committee.   

 

3. Coordinated Entry System (CES) Prioritization Policy and Procedures – Zulima Lundy, Director of 
Operations, Office of Care Coordination  

 
Item moved to December 13, 2022, meeting.  
 
4. Adjournment to: Regular meeting on December 13, 2022, 3:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.5



Business Calendar 
Agenda Item 1 

 

Date:  February 14, 2023 

Subject:  Orange County Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) Data Quality Plan  

Recommended Action:   

a. Approve the recommended Orange County HMIS Data Quality Plan. 

Background and Analysis 

2-1-1 Orange County (211OC) as the HMIS Lead for the Orange County Continuum of Care (CoC), has 
developed a Data Quality Plan for all agencies participating in the OC HMIS. The purpose of the Data 
Quality Plan is to provide a centralized document that all agencies can access and can be used as a tool to 
improve data quality for the agency and OC HMIS as a whole.  

The OC HMIS Data Quality Plan (Attachment A) includes an overview of the different components of data 
quality and how users can review their agency’s data quality for each component. The document also 
includes the established quarterly data quality review process lead by 211OC, as well as incentives and 
enforcements for the Data Quality Plan. 

The Summary of the Tools and Reports for Data Quality Review (Attachment B) is a “cheat sheet” of 
reports and other tools users can access to support with improving their agency’s data quality. This guide 
also includes details on where these reports and tools can be accessed. 

In November 2022, the HMIS Working Group met twice to review and provide feedback on these 
documents. Most of the discussion from the group was regarding incentives and enforcements proposed 
in the Data Quality Plan. The updated documents were shared at the December 2022 Data and 
Performance Management Committee meeting. A draft of the Data Quality Plan for the Orange County 
HMIS was shared with HMIS Agency Administrators for review and feedback, followed by a two-week 
feedback period held in December. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Data Quality Plan for the Orange County HMIS 
Attachment B – Summary of the Tools and Reports for Data Quality Review in the OC HMIS 

 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.6



1 
Last Revision 12/2022 

Data Quality Plan for the Orange County HMIS 
 

Ensuring high-quality data in the Orange County Continuum of Care Homeless Management Information System 
(OC HMIS) is crucial for understanding the scope of homelessness in our community, understanding its 
performance, and determining the appropriate strategies and resources to address this problem.  

The following Data Quality Plan lays the framework, establishes parameters and processes, and outlines individual 
responsibilities to improve data quality across projects within the OC HMIS. The Data Quality Improvement Plan 
includes several key concepts that determine the reliability and the comprehensiveness of our community’s data. 

The key components that are encompassed under the concept of data quality are data completeness, data 
coverage, utilization, data timeliness, data accuracy, and data consistency.  

Data Quality Components  
  
Data Completeness 
Data Completeness refers to the degree to which all required data is known and documented. Coverage and 
utilization are both forms of completeness. Data completeness is crucial in ensuring that the recorded information 
in the OC HMIS accurately represents the population served in projects within the community. Missing data causes 
information gaps that are detrimental to accurate analysis of the data collected about Orange County’s population 
experiencing homelessness. Additionally, missing information makes it difficult to deduplicate the number of 
clients served in the community, which distorts our understanding of the extent to which Orange County residents 
experience homelessness.  

Data completeness is achieved when all the required data elements are answered for all the clients enrolled in 
projects within the system. For this purpose, Homeless Services Providers should review the Data Completeness 
Reports (Appendix A), the Data Quality Corrections Report (Appendix C), and the Data Quality Report Cards 
Dashboard (Appendix E) quarterly and should strive to complete missing information per this review as best as 
their ability. 

There are two categories of data elements used in HMIS:  

1. Universal Data Elements (UDE) - Required of all projects that participate in the OC HMIS. 
2. Program Specific Data Elements (PSDE) - Requirements vary by project type and funding source. 

The table below shows the current Data Completeness thresholds by project type for each type of data element 
collected in HMIS: Universal Data Elements, Program Specific Data Elements at Entry, and Program Specific Data 
Elements at Exit.  

Project Type UDE PSDE Entry PSDE  Exit 
Coordinated Entry 95% N/A N/A 
Emergency Shelter 98% 96% 65% 
Homeless Prevention 98% 96% 95% 
Permanent Supportive Housing/ 
Other Permanent Housing 

98% 96% 95% 

Rapid Re-Housing 98% 96% 95% 
Services Only 95% 90% 50% 
Street Outreach 95% 90% 50% 
Transitional Housing 98% 96% 95% 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.7



2 
Last Revision 12/2022 

Table 1: Current Data Completeness Thresholds by Project Type 

Data Coverage 
Data Coverage refers to the degree to which all Homeless Services Providers within the CoC’s geographic coverage 
area enter all homeless clients’ information into the OC HMIS. Providers include those funded by the CoC and ESG 
Program, federal partner agencies, foundations, and private organizations.  

Data Coverage is essential for a community as it allows it to understand the complete scope of efforts that have 
been deployed to house Orange County’s residents experiencing homelessness. It also allows the community to 
align efforts and work collectively towards the same goal of preventing and ending homelessness in Orange 
County. Partial participation of homeless services providers in HMIS negatively affects the ability of the CoC to 
evaluate how the community is performing as a whole towards the goal of ending homelessness.  

Data Coverage is achieved when all Homeless Services Providers of the community, regardless of the funding 
source, do participate in the OC HMIS and enter all the information from clients served by the entirety of their 
projects into the system. In the OC Continuum of Care, coverage data is collected and reviewed during the Housing 
Inventory Count (HIC) that is submitted to HUD every year. The coverage information is also submitted as part of 
the CoC application.  

The current goal that Orange County has for data coverage is 85%. In order to reach that rate, partially 
participating and non-participating providers should be encouraged by the Continuum of Care to start collecting 
their information into the OC HMIS by emphasizing the benefits that using the system has for the success of their 
projects’ operations and achievements of their goals.  

Bed Utilization 
Bed utilization refers to the degree to which the total number of homeless beds within the HMIS is recorded as 
occupied divided by the total number of homeless beds within the CoC’s geographic coverage area. A bed 
utilization percentage between 50% and 105% is a good indicator of data quality as it is difficult to gauge the 
degree of quality in the system’s information if the utilization rate is too low (below 50%) or too high (105%) 
without a reasonable explanation. 

A proper utilization rate is important as it allows Orange County to optimize the usage of beds and units that are 
available for serving the homeless population. An optimal utilization rate can only be obtained when the number 
of beds recorded in HMIS is accurate, which requires providers to enter data into HMIS for every client they serve 
and exit these clients once they are no longer being served by their projects.  

Bed and Unit Utilization is reviewed for all Homeless Services Providers’ projects within the CoC geographic area 
annually in the Housing Inventory Count submission to HUD. Additionally, agencies can review their residential 
projects’ utilization on the Project Performance Reports (PPR) that are published by 211OC twice a year for each 
project type. Moreover, utilization is reviewed as part of the CoC Application. Current thresholds by Project Type 
are specified in the table below.  

Project Type Utilization 
Emergency Shelter 70% 
Permanent Supportive Housing 95% 
Other Permanent Housing 95% 
Transitional Housing 80% 

Table 2: Current Utilization Thresholds by Project Type 

 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.8



3 
Last Revision 12/2022 

Data Timeliness 
Data Timeliness refers to the degree to which the data is collected in HMIS and available when it is needed. Timely 
data entry is indispensable for the good performance of the system as it ensures data recorded in HMIS is the 
most current information on the clients served by participating projects. Up-to-date information can only be 
achieved when the clients’ data is entered in HMIS as soon as it is collected. Entering data in a timely manner can 
reduce human error when too much time has elapsed between data collection and data entry.  

It is expected for users of the OC HMIS to record intake, exit, and services information in HMIS within three 
calendar days of the client’s actual Project Start, Project Exit, or Service Provision date, respectively. For this 
purpose, agencies should review the Data Timeliness Reports (Appendix B) and the Data Timeliness section of the 
Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard (Appendix E) so they can identify how many days on average does it take to 
record this data in the system for all projects. A minimum of quarterly reviews of these materials would facilitate 
the determination of strategies for reaching the timeliness goal of three days maximum between data collection 
from clients served and the data’s entry into HMIS. 

Data Accuracy 
Data accuracy refers to the degree to which data entered in HMIS represents the real information about the clients 
that are served in the projects contributing data to the system and the services that are provided to clients. Data 
accuracy depends on the client’s ability to provide correct information and the intake worker’s ability to document 
and enter the data accurately. Data accuracy in HMIS is hard to assess and measure as there is no standardized 
baseline of clients’ accurate information. 

Given the uniqueness of each agency’s operation, all providers should establish their own process for monitoring 
the data they contribute to the OC HMIS to verify that it reflects clients’ information accurately. For this purpose, 
it is recommended to take into consideration the following steps:  

• Establish a simple process for HMIS users to report and correct errors as they are discovered. 
• Emphasize to clients and intake staff that it is preferable to enter “client doesn’t know” or “data not 

collected” than to enter inaccurate information. 
• Provide clients with access to review and correct the personal information that has been entered in HMIS. 
• Ensure clients’ first and last names are spelled correctly and that dates of birth are properly verified by 

cross checking this information on clients’ identification documents when possible. 

To support the specific data accuracy monitoring process that each agency establishes, Agency Administrators 
(AAs) should review the Data Accuracy Dashboard (Appendix F) in HMIS. Additionally, to assess accuracy in the 
system, AAs should review the data issues flagged in the Data Quality Corrections Report (Appendix C) and 
displayed in the Data Completeness and Accuracy section of the Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard (Appendix 
E).  

Data Consistency 
Data consistency refers to the degree to which the data is equivalent in the way it is collected and stored among 
all the Homeless Services Providers that participate in the OC HMIS. In order to have consistency in the data, all 
HMIS users across all agencies need to have the same understanding of what is the clients’ information that should 
be collected, the interpretation of this information, and how it should be collected and entered in the HMIS.  

Having consistency in the way the data is entered in the system is crucial as it directly affects the accuracy of the 
clients’ information. Furthermore, different interpretations of how to ask data entry questions, or what answers 
to those questions mean, lead to aggregate information that cannot be correctly interpreted and presented. 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.9



4 
Last Revision 12/2022 

In order to standardize and clarify the interpretation of the questions and response options associated with the 
data elements collected in HMIS, agencies should review the Data Consistency Cheat Sheets (Appendix F). By 
studying these sheets, data entry staff will be able to have the same understanding of the information that each 
field is meant to collect. Additionally, HMIS users will know with certainty the impact that the responses to the 
data elements fields have on their projects’ performance. 

Data Quality Monitoring and Reporting Process  
In order to ensure a high level of data quality in OC HMIS, it is necessary to establish individual responsibilities for 
Participating Agencies as well as the HMIS Lead/System Administrators. 

The following section outlines the steps and specific actions to review and improve data quality in the OC HMIS. 
This process should be completed every quarter.   

Step 1: 211 OC sends Data Quality Corrections to Agency Administrators 
• 211OC generates the Data Quality Correction Report for all active projects in the OC HMIS for the previous 

quarter. 
• 211OC sends Agency Administrators the Data Quality Correction Report which flags Data Completeness 

and Accuracy errors across fields associated with the Universal Data Elements (UDE) for active enrollments 
during the previous quarter. 

Step 2: Agencies correct missing data/errors in HMIS 
• Agencies complete missing information where possible and make appropriate corrections to the clients’ 

enrollments in HMIS according to the DQ errors highlighted in the Data Quality Correction Report. 
• Agencies review the Data Quality Corrections Reference Guide to see a description of the data quality 

errors highlighted in the report and see instructions on how to correct data issues. 
• Victim Service Providers send 211OC Data Quality Exports of active enrollments in their projects during 

the previous quarter. 

Step 3: 211OC runs and publishes Data Quality Report Cards 
• 211OC publishes the Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard which assesses Data Completeness, Accuracy, 

and Timeliness for active enrollments during the previous quarter in all the projects participating in the 
OC HMIS. 

• The Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard includes the percentage of data errors and valid responses for 
each UDE by project, the Average Data Completeness Score for each project, and the average number of 
days it takes agencies to record intake, exit, and services information in HMIS for each project. 

In preparation for the data quality monitoring and reporting process, Agency Administrators should utilize the 
additional reports and tools that 211OC has made available to review the data quality in their projects.  These 
reports and tools are explained further in the appendices of this document and are outlined in the Summary of 
Tools and Reports for Data Quality Review document.  

 

 

 

 

 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.10



5 
Last Revision 12/2022 

Quarterly Due Dates 
The following table specifies the timeframe for each step in the Data Quality Monitoring and Reporting Process. 

Quarters Step 1 
211OC Sends DQ 

Corrections to Agency 
Administrators 

Step 2 
Agencies correct DQ 
errors and missing 

information in HMIS 

Step 3 
211OC publishes Data 
Quality Report Cards 

Q1: 1/1 – 3/31 April 5th April 18th April 30th 
Q2: 4/1/  –  6/30 July 5th July 18th July 30th 
Q3: 7/1/  –  9/30 October 5th October 18th October 30th 
Q4: 10/1  –  12/31 January 5th January 18th January 30th 

Table 3: Generic Quarterly Due Dates 
The date will be changed to the first business day after dates that fall on a holiday or weekend 

 

Incentives and Enforcements 
This section describes the actions that the Orange County CoC will take in order to incentivize agencies to have 
high data quality, and the interventions needed to assist projects that have not been able to meet the data quality 
thresholds. The implementation of incentives and enforcements will allow the HMIS Lead to prioritize the projects 
that need to be assisted with additional technical support. 

Incentives 

• Agencies with projects that met data quality thresholds for all four quarters in the calendar year will be 
shared with the CoC Board 

• Agencies with projects that met data quality thresholds for all four quarters in the calendar year will be 
published on the ochmis.org website 

Enforcements: 

• Projects with at least four data elements under 80% in any quarter will receive technical support from 
211OC.  

• Projects whose average data quality score is less than 80% for all four quarters in the calendar year will 
be put on a performance improvement plan.  

• Projects that do not meet performance improvement goals by the agreed upon deadline and are not 
required to participate in HMIS will be removed. The project may reapply for access after 3 months. 

• Projects receiving CoC and/or ESG funding and do not meet performance improvement goals by the 
agreed upon deadline will be shared with ESG funders and the CoC Board. 

• Agencies with projects on a performance improvement plan are not eligible to apply for new funding 
opportunities approved by the CoC Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.11



6 
Last Revision 12/2022 

Appendices 
 

Appendix A: Data Completeness Reports 
Completeness reports assess the degree to which all required data elements are answered in HMIS for all the 
clients to whom these data elements apply. It is recommended for Homeless Services Providers to run and review 
Completeness Reports quarterly in order to identify incomplete or missing information.  The following reports are 
located in the Reports Page of HMIS, under the Data Analysis tab, Data Quality section.  

• Universal Data Elements (UDE) Completeness Report:  
This report shows the client responses to the UDE defined by HUD in the HMIS Data Standards. These 
data elements are required to be collected by all projects participating in the OC HMIS, regardless of 
funding source.  

• Common Program Specific Data Elements (PSDE) Reports: 
o PSDE at Entry Completeness Report:  

This report shows the client responses to the Common PSDE at Project Entry defined by HUD in 
the HMIS Data Standards. These data elements are collected across most HMIS Federal Partner 
programs at the start of the clients’ enrollments. 

o PSDE at Exit Completeness Report:  
This report shows the client responses to the Common PSDE at Project Exit defined by HUD in 
the HMIS Data Standards. These data elements are collected across most HMIS Federal Partner 
programs at the end of the clients’ enrollments. 

• Federal Partner Program Specific Data Elements:  
The following reports show the client responses to the data elements developed by each Federal Partner 
defined by HUD in the HMIS Federal Partner Programs Manual. These data elements can be limited to one 
or two federal partner programs or a single component of one of the Federal Partner programs.  

o HOPWA Specific Data Elements: 
This report shows the client responses to the Federal Program Specific Data Elements that need 
to be collected by HOPWA funded projects as defined in the HOPWA Program HMIS Manual. 

o PATH Specific Data Elements 
This report shows the client responses to the Federal Program Specific Data Elements that need 
to be collected by PATH funded projects as defined in the PATH Program HMIS Manual. 

o RHY Specific Data Elements 
This report shows the client responses to the Federal Program Specific Data Elements that need 
to be collected by RHY funded projects as defined in the RHY Program HMIS Manual. 

o VA Specific Data Elements 
This report shows the client responses to the Federal Program Specific Data Elements that need 
to be collected by VA funded projects as defined in the VA Program HMIS Manual. 

Appendix B: Data Timeliness Reports 
Timeliness reports show the time it takes for Homeless Services Providers to record intake, exit, and services 
information in the OC HMIS for each project on a client level.  It is recommended to run and review these reports 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.12

https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Data-Standards-Manual.pdf#page=21
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Data-Standards-Manual.pdf#page=22
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Data-Standards-Manual.pdf#page=22
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/hmis/hmis-guides/#hmis-federal-partner-grantees-resources
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4449/hopwa-program-hmis-manual/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4446/path-program-hmis-manual/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4448/rhy-program-hmis-manual/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4450/va-programs-hmis-manual/


7 
Last Revision 12/2022 

every quarter in preparation for the Data Quality Report Cards publication. The following reports are located in 
the Reports Page of HMIS, under the Data Analysis tab, Data Quality section.  

• Project Start Data Timeliness Report:  
This report shows the number of days taken to record Project Start data into HMIS for each client 
enrollment. 

• Services Data Timeliness Report:  
This report shows the number of days taken to record Services data into HMIS for each client 
enrollment.  

• Project Exit Data Timeliness Report:  
This report shows the number of days taken to record Project Exit data into HMIS for each client 
enrollment.  

Appendix C: Data Quality Corrections Report 
This report is sent quarterly by 211OC to all Homeless Services Providers that participate in the OC HMIS. The 
report flags Data Completeness and Data Accuracy errors across fields associated with the Universal Data 
Elements (UDE) for all projects. These errors are identified according to the HMIS Reporting Terminology Glossary 
released by HUD. 

There are three types of errors highlighted in the report:  

• Client doesn’t know/Client Refused, highlighted in orange 
• Missing Information, highlighted in gray 
• Data Issues, highlighted in magenta 

Agency Administrators should review this report, identify all the errors flagged for their projects, and complete 
and/or correct the appropriate fields for the appropriate client enrollments in HMIS. To identify data quality errors 
in the Data Quality Correction Report, each column in the spreadsheet should be filtered by the colors associated 
with each type of error. The filtering process pinpoints the exact responses that present errors as well as the 
clients that present these errors. Additionally, to facilitate the correction process Agency Administrators should 
review the Data Quality Corrections Reference Guide explained in the next appendix. 

Appendix D: Data Quality Corrections Reference Guide 
The Data Quality Corrections Reference Guide is available in the HMIS Data Quality section of the OC HMIS 
website. This guide describes what constitutes a data completeness and accuracy error for all the Universal Data 
Elements fields on the Data Quality Corrections Report (Appendix C). Data completeness errors include responses 
such as client doesn’t know, client refused, data not collected, and unanswered fields. Data accuracy issues include 
responses that are not valid for each data element according to the HUD Data Standards, as well as responses that 
present data incongruences.  

Appendix E: Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard 
The data quality report cards are published quarterly by 211OC. They are available on the HMIS Data Quality 
Report Cards page on the OC HMIS website. This dashboard assesses Data Completeness, Data Accuracy and Data 
Timeliness for all the projects participating in the OC HMIS. The Data Quality Report Cards are published after 
agencies make revisions and corrections on their data using the Data Quality Corrections Report.  

The first tab of the dashboard, Data Completeness and Accuracy, shows the percentage of data errors and valid 
responses for each Universal Data Element (UDE) by project. A response is considered valid when it is in 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.13

https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Standard-Reporting-Terminology-Glossary.pdf
https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Standard-Reporting-Terminology-Glossary.pdf
https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/office/filter-by-font-color-cell-color-or-icon-sets-4af3e865-3e34-4d81-9814-1893ffaada3c
http://ochmis.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/DQ-Corrections-Reference-Guide-4-2021.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Data-Standards-Manual.pdf
http://ochmis.org/hmis-data-quality-report-cards/
http://ochmis.org/hmis-data-quality-report-cards/


8 
Last Revision 12/2022 

accordance with the HUD Data Standards and it is different from “Client doesn’t know”, “Client Refused”, and 
“Data not Collected.” This tab also shows the Average Data Completeness Score for each project, which is a unique 
indicator of data completeness for each project, calculated by dividing the total valid responses that the project 
has across all the Universal Data Elements by the total clients that need an answer to each UDE. 

The second tab of the dashboard, Data Timeliness, shows the average number of days it takes for homeless service 
providers to record intake, exit, and services information in HMIS for each project. The client-level data that 
contribute to the average timeliness calculations can be reviewed by the Agency Administrators by running the 
Data Timeliness Reports (See Appendix B).  

Appendix F: Data Accuracy Dashboard  
The Data Accuracy Dashboard is available to Agency Administrators in HMIS. Agency Administrators should review 
this dashboard monthly for all projects at their agency in order to identify and correct any client information that 
is not truthful or accurate. It is important for Agency Administrators to share the dashboard information with all 
case managers and data intake staff that are familiar with the client information of each project, so they can report 
any data in the dashboard that doesn’t coincide with the real information of the clients they serve.   

Appendix G: Data Consistency Cheat Sheets 
The following Data Consistency Cheat Sheets are available on the OC HMIS website. They provide a detailed 
explanation of critical data elements that need to be collected by the Homeless Services Providers.  

• HMIS Data Element Cheat Sheet: Profile Creation and Enrollment: 
This sheet gives guidance on how to collect and record client intake and project enrollment information 
in a standardized and consistent manner. It provides further explanation on the definition of intake and 
enrollment questions and response options. Additionally, it offers case managers questions they can use 
as guides to help collect certain data elements.  

• HMIS Data Element Cheat Sheet: Exiting, Annual, and Status Assessments: 
This sheet gives guidance on how to collect client status updates and exit information in a standardized 
and consistent manner. It provides further explanation on the definition of the assessment and exit 
questions and response options. It also provides clarification on how to collect Project Exit Date and 
Destination by project type and lists examples of various scenarios. 

• HMIS Data Elements and Reporting Guide:  
This sheet explains the way in which each data element affects project level and system-wise reports in 
the HMIS. It specifies the performance measure in which each data element is used and how missing or 
inaccurate data can yield data issues. 

 

 

 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.14

http://ochmis.org/hmis-cheat-sheets/
http://ochmis.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/FINAL-HMIS-Data-Element-Cheat-Sheet_-Profile-Creation-Enrollment.pdf
http://ochmis.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/FINAL-HMIS-Data-Element-Cheat-Sheet_-Exiting-Annual-and-Status-Assessments-1.pdf
http://ochmis.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/FINAL-HMIS-Data-Elements_-Data-Elements-Reporting.pdf


1 
Last revision 12/2022 

Summary of the Tools and Reports for Data Quality Review in the OC HMIS  
The following table summarizes the tools and reports available for Agency Administrators (AA) to review Data Quality in the OC HMIS. These tools and reports 
are explained further in the Data Quality Plan for the Orange County HMIS. 

Data Quality 
Component 

Specific Tool/Report 
for Review 

Available at How should the tool/report be used? Section on DQ Plan 

COMPLETENESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Data Completeness 
Reports 

Available in HMIS, on 
the Reports Page >  
Data Analysis tab > 
Data Quality section.  
 

Agency Administrators (AA) should run the Data 
Completeness Reports, as needed, to spot missing 
information in their projects’ data.  
 
It is recommended to run and review Completeness Reports 
at least quarterly. 

Appendix A 

Data Quality 
Corrections Report 
(Completeness section) 

Sent by 211 OC HMIS 
quarterly to AA. 

AA should review the Data Quality Corrections Report to 
identify completeness errors highlighted in the report, and 
complete missing information in Clarity accordingly.  
 
To facilitate the reviewing process, refer to the Data Quality 
Corrections Reference Guide, available in the OC HMIS 
website. 

Appendix C 
Appendix D 

Data Quality Report 
Cards Dashboard 
(Completeness section) 

Available quarterly in 
the OC HMIS website, 
HMIS Data Quality 
Report Cards page. 
 
 

The Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard is compiled and 
published quarterly by 211OC. 
 
AA should review the Data Completeness and Accuracy tab 
of the dashboard to see the Average Data Completeness 
Score for each of their projects, as well as the percentage of 
completes errors by data element.   

Appendix E 

TIMELINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Data Timeliness 
Reports 

Available in HMIS, on 
the Reports Page >  
Data Analysis tab > 
Data Quality section.  
 

AA should run the Data Timeliness Reports, as needed, to 
see how long their agency takes to record intake, exit, and 
services data into HMIS for each client. 
 
It is recommended to run and review the Data Timeliness 
Reports at least quarterly. 

Appendix B 

Data Quality Report 
Cards Dashboard 
(Timeliness section) 

Available quarterly in 
the HMIS Data Quality 
report Cards page, of 
the OC HMIS website. 
 

Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard is compiled and 
published quarterly by 211OC. 
 
AA should review the Data Timeliness tab of the dashboard 
to see the average number of days it takes the agency to 
record intake, exit, and services data into HMIS for each 
project.  

Appendix E 

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.15



2 
Last revision 12/2022 

Data Quality 
Component 

Specific Tool/Report 
for Review 

Available at How should the tool/report be used? Section on DQ Plan 

ACCURACY Data Quality 
Corrections Report 
(Data issues section) 

Sent by 211 OC HMIS 
quarterly for AAs to 
review and make data 
issues corrections. 

AA should review the Data Quality Corrections Report to 
identify data accuracy issues highlighted in the report and 
correct these invalid and incongruent responses in Clarity 
accordingly.  
 
To facilitate the reviewing process, refer to the Data Quality 
Corrections Reference Guide, Data Accuracy Issues column, 
available in OC HMIS website 

Appendix C 
Appendix D 

Data Quality Report 
Cards Dashboard 
(Data issues section) 

Compile by 211OC. 
Available quarterly in 
the OC HMIS website. 

The Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard is compiled and 
published quarterly by 211OC. 
 
AA should review the Data Completeness and Accuracy tab 
of the dashboard to see the percentage of responses that 
present data accuracy issues by data element. 

Appendix E 

Data Accuracy 
Dashboard 

Available in HMIS, on 
the Reports Page >  
Data Analysis tab > 
Data Quality section.  

AA should review the Data Accuracy Dashboard for all the 
projects at their agency to verify that the data entered in 
Clarity reflects the information of the clients they serve 
accurately and truthfully. 

Appendix F 

Agency Accuracy 
Monitoring Process 

Established 
autonomously by each 
Homeless Services 
Provider. 

Agencies should establish their own process for monitoring 
the data they contribute to the OC HMIS to verify that data 
in the OC HMIS represents the real information of the clients 
they serve. 

Accuracy section 

CONSISTENCY Data Consistency Cheat 
Sheets:  
—Profile Creation and 
Enrollment 
—Exiting, Annual, and 
Status Assessments 
—Data Elements and 
Reporting Guide 

Available in OC HMIS 
website for all HMIS 
users to review 

All HMIS users, especially the ones in charge of collecting 
and entering the data in HMIS, should review the Data 
Consistency Cheat Sheets to have the same understanding 
of the client information to be collected and the way it 
should be collected. 
 

Appendix G 

 

 

 

 

  

PPS Committee Agenda Pckt Pg.16


	PPS 2.14.23 - Agenda - Final.pdf
	PPS 11.08.22 - Meeting Minutes .pdf
	PPS Memo - Item 1 - Final.pdf
	Business Calendar
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 - Attachment A - OC DQ Plan -  Draft .pdf
	Data Quality Components
	Data Completeness
	Data Coverage
	Bed Utilization
	Data Timeliness
	Data Accuracy
	Data Consistency
	Data Quality Monitoring and Reporting Process
	Step 1: 211 OC sends Data Quality Corrections to Agency Administrators
	Step 2: Agencies correct missing data/errors in HMIS
	Step 3: 211OC runs and publishes Data Quality Report Cards

	Quarterly Due Dates
	Incentives and Enforcements
	Appendices
	Appendix A: Data Completeness Reports
	 Universal Data Elements (UDE) Completeness Report:
	 Common Program Specific Data Elements (PSDE) Reports:
	o PSDE at Entry Completeness Report:
	o PSDE at Exit Completeness Report:

	 Federal Partner Program Specific Data Elements:
	o HOPWA Specific Data Elements:
	o PATH Specific Data Elements
	o RHY Specific Data Elements
	o VA Specific Data Elements


	Appendix B: Data Timeliness Reports
	 Project Start Data Timeliness Report:
	 Services Data Timeliness Report:
	 Project Exit Data Timeliness Report:

	Appendix C: Data Quality Corrections Report
	Appendix D: Data Quality Corrections Reference Guide
	Appendix E: Data Quality Report Cards Dashboard
	Appendix F: Data Accuracy Dashboard
	Appendix G: Data Consistency Cheat Sheets
	 HMIS Data Element Cheat Sheet: Profile Creation and Enrollment:
	 HMIS Data Element Cheat Sheet: Exiting, Annual, and Status Assessments:
	 HMIS Data Elements and Reporting Guide:


	Item 1 - Attachment B - Summary of the Reports  Tools for DQ Review .pdf
	Summary of the Tools and Reports for Data Quality Review in the OC HMIS
	Section on DQ Plan
	How should the tool/report be used?
	Available at
	Specific Tool/Report for Review
	Data Quality Component
	COMPLETENESS
	TIMELINESS
	Data Quality Component
	Specific Tool/Report for Review
	Available at
	How should the tool/report be used?
	Section on DQ Plan

	ACCURACY
	CONSISTENCY




